RANCHO PAUMA MUTUAL WATER COMPANY ("RPMWC")
MINUTES OF THE
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HELD June 5, 2025

Directors Present: Chuck Bandy, Laurie Kariya, Bruce Knox, Linda Shoaff and Scott Shinner
Directors Absent: None
Also Present: Shareholders Peter Jordan, Charles Mathews, Michael Esparza via Zoom, Pauma Valley

Community Services District Board President Fred Nelson via Zoom and PVCSD Board
Treasurer Lolo Levy; Administrative Manager Amber Watkins and Office and
Compliance Manager Kim Alvarado

1. Call to Order: Meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. by President Bandy. This meeting was held in
person and via Zoom.

Bandy began the meeting by thanking everyone for attending. Bandy provided all in attendance with a brief
background statement regarding the ongoing legal issue with the Pauma Valley Community Services
District (“PVCSD”) regarding the office building. Bandy noted that a recent attempt to negotiate a long-
term solution of the currently occupied RPMWC office was countered by PVCSD. Bandy pointed out that
the construction of the office building was a joint venture with the asset on the RPMWC balance sheet for
30 + years. Bandy noted that this joint venture to construct the office building was to his knowledge never
in question from the early 1990’s to 2023.

2. Shareholder Comments: Esparza noted that all fire hydrants should have a clearance of any debris of 36
inches. Bandy stated that both Mathews and Jordan, as former Board presidents, were invited to today’s
meeting to provide their perspective of the office building ownership. Jordan provided a brief history dating
back to his initial arrival to Pauma Valley in 1992, serving on both the Pauma Valley Country Club
(“PVCC”) and the RPMWC Boards. Jordan stated that the office building was constructed as a joint asset
to serve the community. Jordan further stated that as a result of the ongoing disagreement of the joint
building ownership, the community has had to endure the increased costs associated with legal expenses
and the additional overhead due to the separation of the entities. Mathews also provided a background of
his service as a Board President for both RPMWC and PVCSD. Mathews stated that the ongoing legal issue
has placed a higher cost on the community at a time of increased inflation and also at a time of financial
concern for PVCSD. Mathews also stated that the office building was constructed with the associated costs
split by both RPMWC and PVCSD on land leased from the PVCC. Mathews further stated that 12 years
ago the lease lapsed, a payment of roughly $70,000 was issued to purchase the building/land with the
investment placed in PVCSD’s name while ignoring the fact that RPMWC should have been given
accountability for the purchase. Mathews finalized his statement by noting the need for both Boards to
move forward with a working relationship. Mathews noted RPMWC has continued to contribute half of the
costs of the building expenses. Levy noted that she as a Certified Public Accountant had conducted a
forensic review of the PVCSD financial statements and reviewed the shared monthly building expenses
with both the PVCSD Office Manager Fehling and RPMWC Administrative Manager Watkins. Jordan
explained that the office building was constructed by both entities, built for the community by the
community. Mathews noted that the forensic accounting referenced by Levy does not add to the intent,
many of the discussed items were approved with a handshake deal. Levy noted that PVCSD is considered
a Public Company and has the responsibility to oversee their financial decisions as required. Mathews
corrected Levy, stating that PVCSD is a Government Agency. Levy stated that the office building title
clearly states PVCSD as owner. Bandy stated that RPMWC is not asking to be placed on title, RPMWC is
stating there was a breach of the original agreement made between the two entities. Jordan questioned what
RPMWTC is looking to receive from PVCSD with regards to the lawsuit. Bandy noted the damages brought
forth with the lawsuit and that RPMWC staff are treated professionally as peers as opposed to tenants.



Rancho Pauma MWC
Board Meeting Minutes
June 5, 2025

Jordan questioned if in the future both entities would work together under one roof. Bandy stated he does
not believe that would take place as RPMWC has made great strides in obtaining a fully operational staff
which he believes has never been stronger. Shinner referenced a portion of the letter received from PVCSD
regarding the noted rental rate proposed for the currently occupied RPMWC office, questioning Nelson if
the percentage rate was based on the market value of the office space prior to RPMWC improvements or at
current market value with the improvements. Nelson responded noting a current market value after
RPMWC improvements. Nelson questioned why PVCSD bought the building without RPMWC
involvement. Mathews stated that the RPMWC Board was unaware of the transaction. Knox noted that at
the time of the purchase the PVCSD Board President did not communicate the information to the RPMWC
Board. It was noted that at the time of purchase the Board President for RPMWC was John Westwater and
the PVCSD Board President was Bill Winn. Bandy referenced the attempt made by both PVCSD and
RPMWTC to continue talks by creating an Adhoc committee involving 2 Board members from both entities
in 2023. Bandy noted that the Adhoc committee members conducted a deep dive into the historical records
to try to find a solution. The committee developed what was believed to be a fair proposal and submitted it
to PVCSD. Bandy stated instead of receiving an approval from the PVCSD Board, RPMWC staff were
served with an eviction notice. Nelson stated that he was unaware of the eviction notice. Nelson commented
that he is perplexed as to how RPMWC was unaware of the purchase and noted that agreements are not
made on a handshake. Shinner noted that RPMWC needs to move forward and the dollar figure proposed
by the PVCSD Board was absurd. Bandy stated that the proposed rate should reflect the joint interest.
Nelson questioned why the two Boards did not choose to enter into a binding mitigation. Bandy stated that
the entire RPMWC Board was present for mediation in hopes that a decision could have been made that
day. Mathews asked Nelson if he was meaning to reference the term “binding arbitration” instead if binding
mitigation. Nelson replied yes. Nelson stated that PVCSD will be obtaining the current market rental rates
with the hope to further the conversation with RPMWC.

Closed Session
a. Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 14305(b)(2) — Potential Litigation, 1 case: The
Board entered into Closed Session at 3:42 p.m.

Open Session

a. Reportable Actions: The Board reconvened to open session at 4:36 p.m. The Board has directed President
Bandy to draft a letter of response to the Pauma Valley Community Services District Board.

Adjournment

a. Regular Meeting Date at 3:00 pm — Monday, June 23, 2025: With the next meeting date set and no
further business to discuss, Bandy motioned to adjourn the meeting, motion was seconded and upon a
unanimous vote the meeting adjourned at 4:37 p.m.

Wi Avanado

Kim Alvarado, Recording Secretary

2|Page



